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1. Name of Property

historic name _ DREWSVILLE MANSION

other names/site number NA

2. Location

street & number OLD CHESHIRE TURNPIKE NA [ not for publication
city or town __ WALPOLE NA [ vicinity
state _NEW HAMPSHIRE code NH county CHESHIRE code 005  zip code 03608

3. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended, | hereby certify that this nomination
[ request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the National Register of
Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60. In my opinion, the property
B meets [ does not meet the National Register criteria. | recommend that this property be considered significant

[ nationally (] statewide BB locally. (C] See continuation sheet for additional comments.)

T/26/40

Date /'

Signature of certifying of.fi ial/Title

NEW HAMPSHIRE
State of Federal agency and bureau

In my opinion, the property [J meets [1 does not meet the National Register criteria. (D See continuation sheet for additional
comments.) :

Signature of certifying official/Title Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

4. National Park Service Certification
| hereby certify that the property is:
entered in the National Register.
[ See continuation sheet.

[ determined eligible for the
National Register
[] See continuation sheet.

(] determined not eligible for the
National Register.

(] removed from the National
Register.

[ other, (explain:)

Date of Action

evage—  A13/56

Signature of th

AT—
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Name of Property

County and State

5. Classification ? ;
Ownership of Property Category of Property . : . Number of Resources within Property
(Check as many boxes as apply) (Check only one box) - i (Do not include previously listed resources in the count.)
B priva}te ? [ZI bulldlng(s) T ’{ 2 " Contributing Noncontributing
Cptlobal | Dm0 o
O public-Federal O structure 0 0 sites
L object 0 0 structures
0 0 objects
2 0 Total

Name of related multiple property listing
(Enter ““N/A" if property is not part of a multiple property listing.)

N/A

Number of contributing resources previously listed

in the National Register

0

6. Function or Use

Historic Functions
(Enter categories from instructions)

DOMESTIC/SINGLE DWELLING

AGRICULTURE/SUBSISTENCE

Current Functions
(Enter categories from instructions)

VACANT/NOT IN USE

7. Description

Architectural Classification
(Enter categories from instructions)

STICK/EASTLAKE

Narrative Description

Materials
(Enter categories from instructions)

foundation _ GRANTTE

walls WEATHERBOARD
roof SLATE
other WOOD

BRICK

(Describe the historic and current condition of the property on one or more contlnuatlon sheets.)

SEE ATTACHED
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DESCRIPTION OF DREWSVILLE MANSION:

The Drewsville Mansion was built in 1880 at the south end of the Drewsville Village common, on
the Old Cheshire Turnpike in Walpole, New Hampshire. Exhibiting elements of the vernacular
Stick and Eastlake styles, the main block is 2 stories, 4 x 3 bays in configuration, oriented with its
end to the turnpike and its facade facing the common. The wood frame structure is supported by
a granite block foundation exhibiting rough faces and smooth margins. Some filling in of brick is
notable on the facade foundation. The exterior walls are sheathed with clapboards and molding
with paired brackets. A brick corbel cap chimney is located on the west slope of the slate-
shingled hip roof. Iron cresting decorates the summit of the roof. Although the fenestration on the
facade is actually asymmetrical, it still achieves a sense of balance. Throughout the building
doublehung 1/1 sash with plain board surrounds is the predominant fenestration form. Exceptions
include a single story three sided bay window located to the east of the center entry and the two
part 1/1 window centered above the bay window. On the west end, two three-sided bay windows,
each two stories in height, flank a blind opening on each level.

The focal point of the main house is the central of the facade’s four bays. The double doored
centered entry along with the window opening to the west is sheltered by a single story entrance
porch center supported by chamfered wooden posts. The porch frieze is deocrated by jigsawn
cutout ornament including circles and quatrefoils, incised foliate decoration is centered in the
arched panel above. Resting on the porch roof is a projecting second, three-sided bay window
outlined with decorative stickwork and curving brackets marking the cut-away corners. Directly
above, a gabled projection rises from the roof containing a three part window decorated with
stickwork and capped by a gable filled with cutout geometric patterns. According to the son of a
previous owner the front originally spanned the entire facade of the main block.

The rear (south) elevation of the main house displays five bays on the first floor with four above.
With the exception of two second floor two-part windows, the windows display the same 2/2 form
exhibited elsewhere on the house. The central bay is sheltered by a single story, single bay
entrance porch, timmed similarly to the main porch.

A two story, hip-roofed wing extends from the east end of the main house while a two story gable
roofed ell of lesser height projects from the east end of the wing facade. The north side of the
wing is punctuated by irregular fenestration of varying widths including gable wall dormer framed
by brackets and capped by a decorative truss in the gable. A fire in 1991 has resuited in the
boarding up of nearly all of the openings on this elevation. Varying window sizes coupled with
variations in the amount of exposure the clapboards display, suggests that this elevation was
reconfigured. The northeast projection displays decorative trusses at the apex and gable ends
supported by brackets. Projecting from the facade is a decorative truss supported by plain posts.
Cuts visible in the clapboards on this elevation suggest that the openings were originally
somewhat higher than the two shorter levels now visible. Robert Pinard, son of the Mansion's
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former owner, Arthur Pinard stated that after his father purchased the property the single story
projection was converted into two levels. Mr. Pinard also indicated that the wing facing the
common was formerly fronted by a single story porch. This was removed about 1965 (Interview
Robert Pinard, February 1995).

On the south side the length of the wing is fronted by a single story porch supported by plain
chambered posts resting on a brick foundation of recent construction. The simple porch frieze
consists of spaced vertical boards. Fenestration is irregular and contains simple 1/1 windows,
multilight window and several four panel doors. Trim on this section is limited to a bracket at the
end of each elevation. The east end of the building displays irregular fenestration.

The interior of the main house retains many decorative detailings befitting a house constructed for
a member of the rural gentry. Typical of the era is the stair hall embellished by an impressive two
story staircase displaying fancy turned mahogany balusters, bold square newel posts and an
individual colonette at the base of the stairs decorated by medallions, paneled veneers and
incised lines. A parallel beam with chamfered corners and decorative braces decorates the foyer
ceiling at the beginning of the staircase. The main entrance features a set of eight foot tall oak
interior doors with etched glass panels while four panel doors of a similar height, in both single
and double formation, open into the four first floor rooms. Decorative plaster cornice moldings
encircle the foyer as well as the other first floor rooms. Other plaster work includes an elaborate
food motif in the dining room and floral patterns in the west side of rooms. There are six
fireplaces in the house; the most elaborate is found in the front drawing room and consists of a
white marble mantel with an arched opening supported by Doric colonettes. With the exception of
a single “Colonial” replacement in the second floor, northwest room, all of the remaining fireplaces
are variations on the marble mantel with arched openings decorated by cartouches, inlays, incised
ornament and medallions. Some of the fireplaces appear to have been coal burning while others
appear to have been used only for venting purposes. The window and door surrounds consist of
simple wide moldings with side baseboards. Most of the woodwark is varnished. The flooring
throughout the Mansion consists of hardwood boards.

Several original gas fixtures are in evidence, including a single gas lantern fixture in the front hall
and two light gas fixtures suspended upstairs in the hall of one of the western rooms. There are
several built in cabinets in the dining room.

The interior spaces of the service wing are expectedly lacking in decorative detailing. This section
of the house consists of several small rooms and a staircase. Damage from the 1993 fire was
fortunately limited to this area but left charred wood surfaces and smoke damage.

The interior of the eastern end of the house is without significant detailing and appears to date to
the 1920s. Formerly serving as a law library for the original owner, this section was initially
divided into two apartments in the late 1940s or early 1950s and reconfigured into four apartments
in the 1960s. Woodwork throughout this section consists of plain maple moldings surrounding the
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1/1 windows with a single seven panel door notable in on of the unites. One of the bathrooms
displays paneled metal on the walls, linoleum floors and twentieth century fixtures. In one of the
apartments the floor is concrete and the kitchen has been entirely removed. Carpeting and
linoleum are the predominant floor coverings. One of the units retains a c. 1950 kitchen.

Located to the southeast of the wing is two story horse barn, rectangular in plan and consisting of
two sections. The building is capped by a hip roof sheathed in slate shingles with a two stage
ventilator consisting of a square base and flared pyramidal cap. The exterior walls are sheathed
with clapboards and trimmed with plain cornerboards and fascia with corner brackets and
horizontal stickwork spanning along the tops and bottoms of the first floor window openings. First
floor windows contain 6/6 doublehung sash with plain surrounds while the second floor openings
contain 3 x 2 fixed sash windows. The center entry on the west elevation has a set of sliding
‘double-X' doors. An upper loft opening is sheltered by a gable dormer with decorative trusswork
supported by brackets. On the rear elevation, the sloping site exposes a mortared stone
foundation and lower level sliding door opening.

Situated at the head of the common, the house is set in the larger context of a small rural village
grouping which radiates out from the common along the Old Cheshire Turnpike and Route 123.
The Drewsville Mansion is the only structure of the group which appears to date to the late 19th
century. All of the other structures in the village center date to the first three decades of the 19th
century.
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8. Statement of Significance

Applicable National Register Criteria
(Mark "x"" in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying the property
for National Register listing.)

Y.

B

X C

1D

Property is associated with events that have made
a significant contribution to the broad patterns of
our history.

Property is associated with the lives of persons
significant in our past.

Property embodies the distinctive characteristics
of a type, period, or method of construction or
represents the work of a master, or possesses
high artistic values, or represents a significant and
distinguishable entity whose components lack
individual distinction.

Property has yielded, or is likely to yield,
information important in prehistory or history.

Criteria Considerations

(Mark *

‘x"" in all the boxes that apply.)

Property is:

LA

[1B
[1C
[1D
[JE
OF
O G

owned by a religious institution or used for
religious purposes.

removed from its original location.

a birthplace or grave.

a cemetery.

a reconstructed building, object, or structure.
a commemorative property.

less than 50 years of age or achieved significance
within the past 50 years.

Narrative Statement of Significance

(Explain the significance of the property on one or more continuation sheets.)

‘Areas of Significance

(Enter categories from instructions)
ARCHITECTURE

Period of Significance
1880

Significant Dates
1880

Significant Person
(Complete if Criterion B is marked above)

N/A

Cultural Affiliation
N/A

Architect/Builder
UNKNOWN

SEE ATTACHED

9. Major Bibliographical References

Bibilography

(Cite the books, articles, and other sources used in preparing this form on one or more continuation sheets.)
Previous documentation on file (NPS):
XA preliminary determination of individual listing (36

CFR 67) has been requested

[J previously listed in the National Register
[ previously determined eligible by the National

Register

[J designated a National Historic Landmark
(] recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey

#

[J recorded by Historic American Engineering

Record #

Primary location of additional data:

(] State Historic Preservation Office
[] Other State agency
[J Federal agency
[J Local government
[ University
] Other
Name of repository:




DREWSVILLE MANSION CHESHIRE COUNTY, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Name of Property County and State

10._Geographical Data

Acreage of Property 3 ACRES #

UTM References
(Place additional UTM references on a continuation sheet.)

11,9] (7]1,2]0,8,0] [4,7]7,7]9,8,0] 31 R N A

ILI

Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing
2 | | L 1 L | L | | 4 [ | L L | J 1 |

JLJ

[] See continuation sheet

Verbal Boundary Description
(Describe the boundaries of the property on a continuation sheet.) SEE ATTACHED

Boundary Justification SEE ATTACHED
(Explain why the boundaries were selected on a continuation sheet.)

11. Form Prepared By

nameftite  L1SA MAUSOLF

CHRISTINE FONDA *

organization ___CONSULTANT date JUNE 1996
NEW HAMPSHIRE DIVISION OF HISTORICAL RESOURCES * (617)942-2173
street & number ___20 TERRACE PARK telephone (603)271-6437%
BOX 2043 *
city or town READING, MA 01867 state _ MA zip code 01867
CONCORD, NH 03302=-20%43 * —NH ¥ -

Additional Documentation

Submit the following items with the completed form:
Continuation Sheets
Maps
A USGS map (7.5 or 15 minute series) indicating the property’s location.
A Sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage or numerous resources.
Photographs
Representative black and white photographs of the property.

Additional items
(Check with the SHPO or FPO for any additional items)

Property Owner

(Complete this item at the request of SHPO or FPO.)

name SCS HOUSING CORPORATION
street & number PO BOX 603 telephone _ (603)357-0358
city or town KEENE state _NH zip code __03431

Paperwork Reduction Act Statement: This information is being collected for applications to the National Register of Historic Places to nominate
properties for listing or determine eligibility for listing, to list properties, and to amend existing listings. Response to this request is required to obtain

a benefit in accordance with the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended (16 U.S.C. 470 et seq.).

Estimated Burden Statement: Public reporting burden for this form is estimated to average 18.1 hours per response including time for reviewing
instructions, gathering and maintaining data, and completing and reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding this burden estimate or any aspect
of this form to the Chief, Administrative Services Division, National Park Service, P.O. Box 37127, Washington, DC 20013-7127; and the Office of

Management and Budget, Paperwork Reductions Projects (1024-0018), Washington, DC 20503.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE:

The Drewsville Mansion, constructed in 1880 on the site of the former Hope Lathrop house, by
Lathrop's daughter, Sarah Lathrop Lovell and her husband Bolivar Lovell, is significant
architecturally as a good example of a vernacular expression of the Stick Style, documenting a
style seldom used in the region. The Drewsville Mansion is also of interest as a representative
example of the wealth, status and taste of a local family which had acquired considerable fortune
and prestige by the late 19th century, which at the time, was a principal source of rural wealth and
prominence. Despite some fire damage to the wing and the conversion of the single family
residence to apartment use in the 1950s, the Mansion's most distinctive characteristics remain
largely intact. In addition to the main house and service wing with a projection originally
constructed to house Lovell's law library, the property includes a horse barn which appears to be
contemporary with the house. The property is prominently located at the head of the Drewsville
Village common. The Drewsville Mansion retains integrity of location, design, setting, materials,
workmanship, feeling and association and satisfies Criterion C of the National Register of Historic
Places for architecture at the local level. The period of significance is 1880, the date of
construction.

A rather unique vernacular expression of the Stick and Eastlake Styles, the Drewsville Mansion
exhibits a simple boxlike form embellished by stylistic detailing typical of the style including
jigsawn cutout ornament, incised foliate decoration, decorative stickwork and trusses. Although
there are several other Queen Anne style residences in Walpole village including the present
Hitchcock Clinic on Main Street and the Hastiness Memorial Parish House on Union Street which
displays a combination of Shingle and Queen Anne style influences, the Mansion appears to be
the singular remaining example of Stick Style architecture in Walpole, a town where the Federal
and Greek and Gothic Revival styles predominate. A structure which is interesting for its
comparison to the Drewsville Mansion is the old Wentworth Hotel in Walpole Village (no longer
extant). The hotel, illustrated in the town history, appears to have been a rather late example of
the mansard style, clothed in Stick Style trusses and bracketwork, was constructed in 1880 on the
site of a hotel which burned that year. According to a newspaper account, the architect of the
structure was William P. Wentworth of Boston (Keene Sentinel, 12/9/1880). Just a few months
earlier, a Bellows Falls newspaper credits the design of the new Catholic Church in Charlestown
(St. Catherine’s) to Pitt Wentworth (Bellows Falls Times, 9/2/1880). Like both the Drewsville
Mansion and the Wentworth Hotel, St. Catherine's was built in a vernacular expression of the
Stick Style. The fact that all three structures were constructed in 1880, in an architectural style
which appeared to be otherwise seldom used in this region would suggest that William Pitt
Wentworth may have also served as the architect for the Drewsville Mansion. Like the Wentworth
Hotel, the Drewsville Mansion has at its core a simple, rather outdated form, in this case a hipped
roof box, draped in Stick Style trappings.
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Little is known of Wentworth's career. According to Withey’s Biographical Dictionary of Architects
(Deceased) . William Pitt Wentworth (1839-1896) was a native of Vermont who went on to study
architecture in New York City. He practiced in Boston for more than thirty years (Withey.644). He
designed a number of churches including the Flower Memorial Church in Watertown, as well as
several hospitals including one in Lynn, Massachusetts, the Washingtonian Home in Boston and
the State hospital for the Insane at Medfield (American Architect and Building News, April 18,
(1896). Based on his Vermont connection, it is not inconceivable that Wentworth designed
several structures in the area in 1880.

The Drewsville Mansion was constructed in 1880 for Bolivar and Sarah Lathrop Lovell on the site
of Mrs. Lovell's father's house. Her father, Hope Lathrop came to Drewsville in 1819 and was
appointed deputy sheriff soon thereafter. Lathrop also operated a local hotel, was a postmaster
and a merchant. According to the County History, Lathrop “was not a progressive man, his
paramount thoughts and energies centered on the accumulation of money...His wealth and
shrewdness gave him some local influence, but beyond his own town he was but little known”
(Hurd 1886:450-451). At the time of his death Lathrop was a wealthy citizen of the village of
Drewsville, serving as president of the Connecticut River National Bank in Charlestown. He died
December 31, 1878 when the team he was driving collided with a freight train as he crossed the
Vermont Central Railroad track. According to the Keene newspaper, Hope Lathrop left two
daughters to inherit his large estate - the wife of Hon. Bolivar Lovell of Alstead and Mrs. Norman
H. Farr of Bellows Falls, Vermont (Keene Sentinel, 1/9/1879, p. 2).

Bolivar Lovell, son of lawyer Aldis Lovell, was born in Drewsville on August 30, 1826 and married
Sarah Lathrop (1829-1904) in 1848. After working as a clerk in Providence, Rhode Island for
three years, he returned to New Hampshire and began studying law in his father's office at
Alstead about 1845. In 1847 he was appointed deputy sheriff and in 1855 he was appointed
Sheriff for Cheshire County, an office which he held for ten years. In 1862 he was appointed
United States assessor of internal revenue for the Third New Hampshire District and held the
office for eight years. In 1869, Lovell was admitted to the bar, practicing initially in Alstead and
later in Drewsville. In 1873-4 he was elected a member of the Governor’'s Council. The County
History indicates that Lovell “is considered a safe reliable business man, and an honest
lawyer’(Hurd 1886:451).

After his father-in-law's death in 1879, Bolivar Lovell moved his family to Drewsville in 1880 where
he continued to reside until his death in 1892 (Sentinel 6/12/1893). According to the Keene
Sentinel of September 9, 1880, Lovell “has moved across the line from Alstead, has a local
habitation and is building a palatial residence in the quiet secluded village of Drewsville”".

Little is known of Sarah Lathrop Lovell. She apparently made a grand tour of Europe in the
summer of 1886 (Frink:253). Sarah and Bolivar had three children. Upon her death, Sarah Lovell
left Drewsville Mansion to her daughter, Martha Ellen Lovell Smith Shrimpton who sold the
property to George Brown of Everett, Massachusetts in 1910.
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The property passed through a rapid succession of owners in the following years. In 1911 it was
purchased by Annie E. Higgins, wife of Frederick Higgins of Newton, Massachusetts; in 1912 to
Galon Howard of Alstead. In 1919 Howard's heirs, Mabel Sawyer, Ruth Bergeron and Ethel
Buswell sold to Ralph and Belle Halladay. The Halladays continued to own the eastern section of
the building, formerly a single story serving as Lovell's law library, into two apartments with the
addition of a second floor. In the 1960s this section of the building was reconfigured once again to
provide a total of four apartments. The Pinard family owned the property until 1989 (Interview
Robert Pinard). It continued to serve a multi-family use until recently. The structure has been
vacant since 1993.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION:

Boundaries of the nominated property are indicated on the attached sketch map.

BOUNDARY JUSTIFICATION:

Boundaries of the nominated property are drawn to include Drewsville Mansion and its associated
barn, and their immediate setting. A 3 acre wetland on the property, which does not contribute to
its significance, has been excluded.
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